
Northern Inyo Hospital

September 20 2017 Regular Meeting
September 20 2017 Regular Meeting - September 20 2017 Regular Meeting

Agenda, September 20 2017 Regular Meeting

District Board Agenda, September 20 2017 Regular Meeting

Keenan Pharmacy Benefits Program Proposal

Keenan Pharmacy Benefits Proposal

Policy and Procedure Approvals

Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process
Orientation
Employment of Minors
Standards of Conduct
Business Associate Agreements
Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan

Annual Policy and Procedure Approvals

Annual Policy and Procedure Approvals (attachment A to Agenda)

NIHD PEPRA Retirement Plan Actuarial Valiation at 1/1/17

NIHD PEPRA Retirement Plan Actuarial Valuation as of 1/1/17

District Board Resolution 17-04, PPAC Committee Transition

District Board Resolution 17-04, PPAC Committee transition

District Board Resolution 17-05, LAIF Fund Authorization

District Board Resolution 17-05, LAIF Fund Authorization

District Board Resolution 17-06, Banking authorization

District Board Resolution 17-06, Banking Authorizations

District Board Resolution 17-07, Benefits and Compensation accounts authorizations

District Board Resolution 17-07, Benefits and Compensation accounts authorizations

Consent Agenda

DIstrict Board Minutes, August 16 2017 Regular Meeting
2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring, September 2017
Hospital Wide Pillars of Excellence

Chief of Staff Report

Chief of Staff Report, September 20, 2017

.................................2

........................................................................5

..................................................6
..................................................................................................................11

..............................................................................................13
...............................................................................................15

.............................................................................18
.................................20

...................25

............................28

..............................55

...................................56

.....................................57

58

.....................................59
...................................65

.........................................................................70

..............................................................71

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

1

http://www.tcpdf.org


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
DRAFT AGENDA 

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

September 20, 2017 at 5:30 p.m. 
In the Northern Inyo Hospital Board Room at 2957 Birch Street, Bishop, CA 

 
 
 
  

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).    

2. At this time persons in the audience may speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter 

within the jurisdiction of the District Board (Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 

address the Board on every item on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to a maximum of three 

minutes each.). 

3.   New Business 

  A.  Compounding Pharmacy update (information item). 

  B.  Designation of Dietary Director (action item). 

              C.  Keenan Pharmacy Benefits Program Proposal (action item). 

              D.  Policy and Procedure approval, Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process (revised)  

                   (action item). 

              E.  Policy and Procedure approval, Orientation (revised) (action item). 

              F.  Policy and Procedure approval, Employment of Minors (revised) (action item). 

              G.  Policy and Procedure approval, Standards of Conduct (revised) (action item). 

              H.  Policy and Procedure approval, Business Associate Agreements (action item). 

               I.  Policy and Procedure approval, Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan  

                    (action item). 

               J.  Policy and Procedure Annual approvals (Attachment A to agenda), (action item). 

               K. NIHD PEPRA Retirement Plan Actuarial Valuation as of 1/1/17 (action item). 

               L. District Board Resolution 17-04, PPAC Committee transition (action item).  

               M.  District Board Resolution 17-05, LAIF Fund authorization (action item). 

               N.  District Board Resolution 17-06, Banking authorizations (action item). 

               O.  District Board Resolution 17-07, Benefits and Compensation accounts authorizations (action  

                    item). 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

2



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, September 20, 2017 
 
 

9/14/2017, 2:36 PM 

                                       Consent Agenda (action items) 
4. Approval of minutes of the August 16, 2017 regular meeting 

5. 2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring, September 2017 

6. Financial and Statistical Reports for the period ending July 31, 2017 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

7. Patient Experience Committee report (information item). 

8. Workforce Experience Committee report (information item). 

9. Chief of Staff Report; Richard Meredick, MD: 

A.  Policies/Procedures/Protocols/Order Sets approvals (action items): 

• Aerosolized Transmissible Disease Plan 

• Trophon® Environmental Probe Reprocessor (EPR) 

• Guidelines for Management of Health Care Providers with HEB, HEPC and/or HIV 

• Thrombolytic Therapy with Alteplace (tPA) for an Acute Ischemic Stroke (with 

attachments) 

• Suspicious Injury Reporting Policy  

• Elder and Dependent Adult Abuse 

• Use of Hospital-Issued Notice of Noncoverage HINN (with four attachments) 

• Surgery Scope of Service 

• Scope of Service - PACU 

            B.      Temporary Staff Update (information item): 

                       -  Amik Reen MD (temporary hospitalist) 

                       -  Naomi Lawrence-Reid MD (temporary pediatrician) 

                       -  Truong Quach MD (temporary hospitalist) 

    16. Reports from Board members (information items). 

    17. Adjournment to closed session to/for: 

           A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the responsible department  

                head and the Medical Staff Executive Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety  

                Code, and Section 54962 of the Government Code).  

            B.  Confer with Legal Counsel regarding pending and threatened litigation, existing litigation and  

                  significant exposure to litigation, 1 matter pending (pursuant to Government Code Section  

                  54956.9).  

3



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, September 20, 2017 
 
 

9/14/2017, 2:36 PM 

            C.  Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (estimated public session date for  

                  discussion yet to be determined) (Health and Safety Code Section 32106). 

             D. Discussion of a personnel matter (pursuant to Government Code Section 54957). 

      18.  Return to open session and report of any action taken in closed session.  

      19.  Adjournment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to 
participate in a District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting. 

4



5



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
(23-02)* 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:  04/15/201509/20/2017 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

PURPOSE: 
 
To outline the Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process policy and procedure to 
provide methods: 1) for employees to register complaints about discrimination, 
harassment, or problems concerning wages, hours, working conditions, the interpretation 
or application of policies and procedures, disciplinary action employees feel was not for 
just cause, or any other matters related to their employment; and 2) to afford management 
the opportunity to explain, respond, and take corrective action in a timely manner. 
 
POLICY: 
 
All employees have the right to voice their complaints. 
We recognize the meaningful value and importance of full discussion in resolving 
misunderstandings and preserving good relations between management and our 
employees. As such we encourage employees to communicate problems arising from 
work situations in an open manner, without fear of recrimination or retaliation.  For 
minor employees, the parent/legal guardian shall be included in this process.  
Accordingly, we believe that the following procedure will ensure that complaints receive 
full consideration.  
Should a condition exist that an employee feels is unsatisfactory, it is important that he or 
she bring it to the attention of the appropriate person in the proper manner. For minor 
employees, either the assigned mentor, a representative from Human Resources, or the 
parent/legal guardian shall assist in bringing any matter to the attention of the appropriate 
person in the proper manner.  Normally that person is the employee's immediate 
supervisor. If the supervisor is the source of the complaint (e.g., unlawful harassment), 
the employee is to contact human resources. Any employee who perceives problems in 
the course of their work or who believes their rights and privileges under hospital policies 
and rules have been applied unfairly must adhere to this procedure to file a complaint and 
enter the grievance process. 
  
It is the intent of this policy that complaint resolution be accomplished by supervisory 
levels described in Step 1 of the procedure (preferably the immediate supervisor). Matters 
more appropriately resolved at the first step are not to be deferred to succeeding steps of 
the procedure and grievance process. Human Resources will assess complaints as: i) 
discrimination or unfair treatment relating to or caused by gender, race, religious beliefs, 
age, or other legally protected status; ii) harassment; iii) problems concerning wages or 
hours; iv) working conditions; v) interpretation or application of policies and procedures; 
vi) disciplinary action employee(s) feel was not for just cause; or vii) any other matters 
related to employment, including workplace bullying. 

6



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
(23-02)* 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:  04/15/201509/20/2017 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Nothing in this policy alters or should be interpreted as altering the at-will employment 
relationship between Northern Inyo Hospital and its employees. 

7



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
(23-02)* 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:  04/15/201509/20/2017 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

DEFINITIONS: 
 
Harassment – Under this policy, harassment is verbal, written or physical conduct that 
denigrates or shows hostility or aversion toward and individual because of his or her race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, 
disability, marital status, citizenship, genetic information, or any other characteristic 
protected by law, or that of his or her relatives, friends or associates, and that: a) has the 
purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, b) 
has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work 
performance, or c) otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment opportunities. 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 
1. Employees are encouraged, but not required to discuss problems and complaints in an 

informal manner with their immediate supervisor, Coordinator, Manager, Director, 
Chief, or Chief Human Relations Officer.  For minor employees, either the assigned 
mentor, a representative from Human Resources, or the parent/legal guardian shall 
assist in bringing any matter to the attention of the appropriate person in the proper 
manner at any step in this procedure. 

2. If not resolved in step 1, a written formal complaint must be filed with the Human 
Relations Department within thirty (30) working days of the occurrence of the event. 
(Reference note a.) Employee Written Formal Complaint Form  

3. Within five (5) working days of receipt (Reference note a.): 1) the Human Relations 
Department will initially respond to the formal written complaint assessing the 
complaint as: i) discrimination or unfair treatment relating to or caused by gender, 
race, religious beliefs, age, or other legally protected status; ii) harassment; iii) 
problems concerning wages or hours; iv) working conditions; v) interpretation or 
application of policies and procedures; vi) disciplinary action employee(s) feel was 
not for just cause; or vii) any other matters related to employment. Then, accordingly, 
two (2) copies of the written complaint and HR response will be forwarded as 
appropriate up the employee’s chain of command by HR. 

4. Each level of the chain of command, as determined appropriate, will discuss the 
written complaint with the Chief Human Relations Officer or designee and respond to 
the employee in writing within five (5) working days of receipt of the written 
complaint from Human Relations. (Reference note a.) 

5. If the employee does not accept the decision of the level of leadership, the employee 
may appeal the decision in writing up the chain of command, and ultimately to the 
Administrator within five (5) working days of the employee’s receipt of each leader’s 
decision. (Reference note a.) 

8

http://ppm.nih.org/docview/?docid=4416


NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
(23-02)* 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:  04/15/201509/20/2017 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

6. If it reaches the level of the Administrator, the Administrator or designee will 
completely and impartially investigate the complaint and within (5) working days 
provide the employee with a written decision. (Reference note a.) 

7. All decisions of the Administrator or designee shall be final and not subject to further 
appeal. 

8. Throughout the complaint and grievance process stated in the policy, if still scheduled 
to work, the employee is required to continue to perform his/her duties in a 
satisfactory manner or be subject to disciplinary action. 

9. Employees terminated or suspended, as the result of disciplinary action will remain 
terminated or suspended during the grievance process stated in this policy. 

10. At each stage of the grievance process, if the employee prevails, he/she shall be 
reinstated.  Back pay, in whole or in part, may or may not be granted at the discretion 
of the Administrator or designee. 

11. Human Relations will receive a copy of all communication related to the grievance 
process, for inclusion in the employee’s personnel file. 

12. Retaliation against the employee making a complaint or using the grievance process 
is prohibited and will lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

 
Notes: 

a. There may be occasions when, because of the time or the particular circumstances 
involved, either the employee or management of the hospital may request that the 
time requirements in this procedure be waived or extended. 

b. In order to most appropriately or effectively investigate or resolve a 
complaint/grievance, management may invoke other options during the grievance 
process, e.g. use of a Task Force or outside consultant or mediator. 

b.c. For matters involving an employee who is a minor, the minor’s assigned mentor, 
a representative from Human Resources, and/or the minor’s parent/legal guardian 
must be involved in any process under this policy. 

 
CROSS REFERENCE P&P: 
Required - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (03-01) 
Required - HARASSMENT POLICY (23-01) 
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT (18-02) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: Required - EMPLOYEE COMPLAINTS AND THE GRIEVANCE PROCESS 
(23-02)* 
Scope: Hospital Wide Department: Human resources – 

Employee Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:  04/15/201509/20/2017 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 
 
Approval Date 
Senior Management 02/02/201509/5/2017 
Board of Directors 04/15/201509/20/2017 
 

10



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 02-03 ORIENTATION 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:September, 2017 
 
POLICY: 
 
There will be a general orientation program for each new employee shortly after the date 
of employment. This is the time when the new employee will be taken on a tour of the 
hospital District’s facilities and have the fire and disaster plan explained, emergency 
codes reviewed, and other relevant hospitalDistrict-wide policies discussed.  Prior to 
employment, each employee who is a minor shall receive age-appropriate general 
orientation to District employment including a tour of the District’s facilities and 
explanations/discussions about the fire and disaster plan, emergency codes, and other 
relevant District-wide policies. 
 
Employees will also receive detailed introductions and orientation of to their specific 
department and job responsibilities by their supervisor.  Each minor employee shall be 
assigned a District-trained mentor who shall assist the supervisor in giving age-
appropriate introductions and orientation to the specific department and job 
responsibilities of the minor employee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 02-03 ORIENTATION 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date:September, 2017 
 
Approval Date 
Personnel/Payroll Advisory Committee  
Human Resources 9/5/2017 
Administration 9/5/2017 
Board of Directors 11/20/2002 
Last Board of Director review 1/18/179/20/2017 
 

12



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 04-02 EMPLOYMENT OF MINORS 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: September 2017 
 
POLICY: 
 
We abide by the state and federal regulations that govern the employment of minors. 
Therefore, we require any applicant who has not reached his/her eighteenth birthday to 
obtain a work permit from school before being accepted for employment. 
 
Any minor employed by the District shall receive age-appropriate orientation and 
professional development to the District’s workplace.  Each minor shall be assigned a 
District-trained mentor who shall assist in developing the workplace skills and 
competencies of the minor to whom the mentor is assigned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval Date 
Personnel/Payroll Advisory Committee  
Human Resources 9/5/2017 
Administration 9/5/2017 

13



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 04-02 EMPLOYMENT OF MINORS 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: September 2017 
 
Board of Directors 11/20/2002 
Last Board of Director review 1/18/179/20/2017 
 

14



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 18-02 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: September 2017 
 
POLICY: 
 
In order to provide employees of Northern Inyo Hospital some guidance concerning 
unacceptable behavior, the following are some examples of types of conduct considered 
impermissible. Employees who engage in any misconduct or whose performance is 
unsatisfactory may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and possibly including 
immediate termination. The list is intended simply to provide some examples of 
disciplinary offenses. 
 
1. Unsatisfactory performance on the job such as: 
 

Absence without proper notification/explanation, chronic absenteeism or chronic 
tardiness. Chronic absenteeism or chronic tardiness results when an employee is 
absent or tardy without excuse two or more times in a 30-day period; or is absent or 
tardy without excuse five or more times in a 90-day period. 
 
Leaving assigned work without permission. 
 
Breach of professional confidence. 
 
Gross insubordination; outright refusal to follow directions or obey legitimate 
orders of supervisor. 
 
Refusal to wear appropriate personal protective equipment. 
 
Willful negligence in performance on the job. 
 
Sleeping, or giving the appearance of sleeping, while on duty. 
 

2. Falsification of or making a material omission on forms, records, or reports, including 
punch detail reports, application materials, or other records. Examples are: 

 
Failure to report an incident in accordance with the hospital's guidelines for the use 
of incident reports. 
 
Knowingly making false entries on another employee's punch detail report or edit 
sheet, or allowing someone else to make false entries on your punch detail report or 
edit sheet; or falsification of punch detail reports or edit sheets in any manner. 

15



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 18-02 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: September 2017 
 

 
3. Violating safety or health rules or practices or engaging in conduct that creates a safety 

or health hazard such as: 
 

Smoking in unauthorized areas. 
 
Failure to report an accident or incident involving a patient, visitor or yourself. 
 
Threatening, intimidating, coercing, or interfering physically with fellow 
employees, patients or visitors on hospital property; unauthorized possession of 
firearms, explosives or knives. 
 
Workplace bullying which is repeated, health-harming mistreatment of one or more 
persons (the targets) by one or more perpetrators. It is abusive conduct that is: 

• Threatening, humiliating, or intimidating, or 
• Work interference — sabotage — which prevents work from 
 getting done, or 
• Verbal abuse 

 
 
Demonstrating incompetency, inefficiency or negligence where a patient's welfare 
is concerned. 
 
Ignoring a fire alarm, fire drill, disaster alarm or disaster drill. 
 
Reporting for work under the influence of alcohol or narcotics, or using either on 
the hospital's premises or in hospital-owned vehicles whether on or off duty. 
 

4. Other types of misconduct include: 
 

Willful abuse of the building or equipment. 
 
Unauthorized posting or removal of materials on official hospital bulletin boards. 
 
Violation of the hospital's solicitation and distribution rules. 
 
Abusive or obscene language. 
 
Sexual intercourse, oral copulation, or sodomy, committed on the hospital premises, 
whether or not such conduct is lawful. 
 
Stealing from fellow employees, patients, the hospital, or others on hospital 
premises; taking hospital property, records, or hospital information without 
permission. 

16



NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK – PERSONNEL POLICY 

 
Title: 18-02 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
Scope: Hospital Wide Manual: Human resources – Employee 

Handbook 
Source: Human Resources Effective Date: September 2017 
 
 
Approval Date 
Personnel/Payroll Advisory Committee  
Human Resources 9/5/2017 
Administration 9/5/2017 
Board of Directors 11/20/2002 
Last Board of Director review 5/17/179/20/2017 
 

17



18



19



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan 
Scope: District-Wide Manual: Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement 
Source: Performance Improvement Effective Date: September, 2017 
 
POLICY: 
 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) embraces a systematic approach to change 
management and performance improvement, also known as performance transformation.  A 
systematic approach to implementing change places the responsibility on leadership to 
understand stakeholder characteristics.  A systematic approach to performance 
transformation can include planning and practicing various scenarios and identifying likely 
implementation strategies and communication priorities on an ongoing basis prior to 
implementing organizational change that will transform the way in which NIHD does business.  
Such a systematic approach also identifies potential barriers to a smooth implementation of a 
change while giving sufficient time to plan to such barriers.   

 
The resulting streamlining of the performance transformation process assures adequate 
consideration of each stakeholder’s interest prior to the transformation taking place.  
Unintended consequences are assessed against desired outcomes.  This performance 
transformation plan is designed to build on NIHD’s existing change management strategies 
and initiatives and is expected to be implemented by all NIHD departments.  
  
PROCEDURE: 
 
I. NIHD’s Performance Transformation Model: PDSA 
 
The Plan-Do-Study-Act model of performance Transformation is based on the 1950 
Model developed in Japan by Dr. W. Edwards Deming.  Also known as the Deming 
Cycle, this model is one of logical sequence of four repetitive steps with expected 
outcomes for continuous quality improvement and learning.  The concept of PDSA is 
based on two prior models.  The first is the scientific method “hypothesis” – “experiment” 
– “evaluation” championed by Francis Bacon in his work entitled “Novum Organum” in 
1629 and the second is the Shewhart cycle of “specification” – “Production”, and 
“inspection” authored by Walter A. Shewhart in 1939.  There are four steps to the PDSA 
model that cover a broad area and are easy to use. 
 

A. Plan:  Identify an Opportunity and Plan for Improvement. 
 
 This is the first step in the model as it establishes the basis for what will set the 
other three steps in motion. Transforming performance requires anticipating and 
preparing for that transformation. In this step, the originator of the change plans for the 
object of the test or observation, including a plan for collecting data.  An analysis of the 
data is needed to determine the possible and probable impact of any improvement on the 
organization.  A thorough understanding of the external environment is needed to assess 
the change as it may occur locally, regionally, nationally and/or globally.  Identifying the 
implications for the organization is a key component of this step.  The originator, in this 
step, states the objective of the test and makes predictions about what will happen and 
why.  Then, a plan to test the change is developed answering the questions of who, what, 
when, where and what data need to be collected.  Once the Plan is defined in this way, 
goals for appropriate action to be taken can be defined. 
 
  

20



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan 
Scope: District-Wide Manual: Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement 
Source: Performance Improvement Effective Date: September, 2017 
 
Topics to consider when developing plans include: 
 

• Involving all possible stakeholders, including staff and leadership in the planning 
and implementation of  
the transformation. Research is required to identify the target audience’s informal 
and formal leadership  
during this step as including target audience leaders results in a natural 
acknowledgement to change  
because of consultation and involvement. 

• Achieving credibility through endorsement of the change by organizations (health, 
scientific, professional, etc.), experts (economic, health, environmental, etc.), 
informal and formal leaders (employee, community, professional, religious), etc. 

• Effectively using the stakeholders’ existing culture by tying strategies to existing 
work patterns, social customs and behaviors, artifacts, and belief systems 
whenever possible. 

• Identifying and communicating the strongest motivations (perceived benefit) for 
change acceptance. The strongest motivations are normally economic, status, 
health/safety, and convenience, but other motivations will also exist. Learn and 
confirm them through target audience research accomplished during this step. 
Use more than one motivation in organizational communication for maximum 
effectiveness. 

• Identifying processes that will start stop and/or continue pre, during and post 
change implementation. 

• Establishing a balance among results, time and resource requirements e.g. 
employees, equipment or technology to facilitate the change. 

• Listing tasks and activities that will achieve the goals of the transformation. 
• Sequencing activities in the most efficient manner. 
• Designing educational and/or informational programs as needed. 
• Planning to assure consistency and frequency of communication. E.g. 

determining communication channels (formal and informal, verbal and non-
verbal) preferred by the audience targeted for change. Knowledge of the 
communication taking place among target audience members is also critical for 
the correction of communication during the change process. 

 
B. Do:  Carry Out the Plan 

 
 In this step, the plan is carried out, in essence, tested.  During this step, 
problems are documented and unanticipated observations or outcomes are collected.  
Data are collected and analyzed in an effort to establish baselines, identify root causes 
of the problem for which a solution is being sought and then suggest possible solutions 
(organizational learning). This process is important to all aspects of NIHD’s operations, 
and is a crucial step in both performance transformation and quality improvement 
processes. The analyses conducted in this step will lead to the identification of any 
adjustments that will need to be made to optimize the transformation.  Steps to minimize  
  

21



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan 
Scope: District-Wide Manual: Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement 
Source: Performance Improvement Effective Date: September, 2017 
 
identified threats presented by this change will be made during this step.  Therefore, part 
of the implementation of the plan is to accurately evaluate the target audience’s desire for 
change or acceptance of change. This step allows NIHD to identify potential barriers in 
persuading a target audience to accept change and the types of influence and/or forcing 
functions that may be necessary to accomplish the change (precursor to adopting the 
changed process). Pilot studies can be implemented to evaluate the acceptability of a 
change. 
 

C. Study:  Study the Results 
 

In this step, baseline data established at the Plan step and data collected 
throughout the Do step is analyzed.  Ensure that the data is valid and reliable (Plan step).  
Effectiveness of implementation will be based on the congruence among members of 
stakeholders and conferring with Quality professionals is strongly recommended in 
building the new strategy for implementation of the transformation.  A summary of what 
was achieved, learned and accomplished should be completed.  Any modifications to the 
Plan, or pilots, should cycle through these steps and data collected for each is to be 
analyzed in this step.  Ongoing measurement and monitoring is done to capture 
deviations, take corrective actions (organizational learning), collect evaluations and 
information from stakeholders and team members and adapt resource levels as needed 
to ensure hardwiring.   
 

D. Act:  Take Action to Hardwire the Transformation 
 
 In this step, based on evaluative data, plans may be refined to capitalize on 
successes and minimize failures, or plans may be stabilized when it is evident that the 
change is integrated into the formal structure of the organization with policies, prompts, 
reward systems, artifacts, and cultural behaviors. 
 
These four steps are critical to successfully implement change (integration to all 
stakeholders). The process can be repeated on an ongoing basis so barriers will 
continually be recognized and resolutions put in place. This process also helps to 
facilitate the continuity of the newly implemented change and to ensure changes are 
“hard-wired” into the fabric of the organization.  A sample template to implement the 
PDSA is attached to this policy as a guide. 
 
III. The PDSA Model applies to the following types of changes: 
 

• Change required to prevent sentinel events or near miss activities. 
• Change required for patient safety. 
• Change required to improve patient care outcomes as evidenced by 

measurable parameters. 
• Change required to improve customer service focusing on improved 

satisfaction. 
  

22



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan 
Scope: District-Wide Manual: Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement 
Source: Performance Improvement Effective Date: September, 2017 
 

• Change required for cross functional/departmental problem solving. 
• Change required to modify staffing or scope of practice. 
• Change required for cost containment. 
• Change required for improving NIHD’s competitive position. 
• Change required based on the health priorities identified by NIHD. 
• Change that Leadership determines would be more successful if the 

PDSA model is used. 
• Change that includes assessment of education, training, and 

competencies for scope of practice changes. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

A. Originator.  The Originator identifies need for a transformation, notifies their 
leader in their chain of command of the pending transformation, and may assist in providing 
background and research, assist in documenting the requested transformation, identify potential 
risks associated with the transformation and the scope and operational impacts as possible. The 
chain of command should report all of the information to the Department Head.  The Originator 
retains documentation supporting the transformation, the resulting evaluation and follow up.  
The Originator will report appropriate metrics to appropriate departments/committees and the 
Quality Department. 

 
B. Department Heads.  The Department Head receives notice of an impending 

transformation, performs initial evaluation and analysis with the originator and/or others in the 
chain of command including: 

 
• Impact of the project scope and quality 
• Impact to patient care or other operations 
• Impact to the operational/capital costs 
 

The Department Head uses the principles and practices contained in the Project Management 
Institute’s (PMI) Project Management Body of Knowledge (PMBOK) for the initial and ongoing 
evaluation and implementation of the transformation. 
 
REFERENCES: 
 
The Joint Commission Standards: PI.01.01.01; LD.03.05.01 
Quality Assurance & Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan 
Performance Improvement and Risk Management Overview Policy 
 
Approvals Date 
Quality Assurance and Performance Improvement  
Senior Leadership  
Board  of Directors  
Last Board of Directors Review  
 

23



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 
POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

Title: Performance Transformation Management Model and Plan 
Scope: District-Wide Manual: Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement 
Source: Performance Improvement Effective Date: September, 2017 
 

Plan-Do-Study-Act (PDSA) – Sample Worksheet for a Test of Change 
 

(Note:  To test an idea may require one or more multiple PDSA cycles) 
 
 
TEAM/PROJECT NAME: ______________________ Date:_______________________ 
 
Idea testing:________________________    PDSA Cycle #:_________________________ 
 
 
Describe your first (or next) test 
of change 

Person Responsible When to be 
done 

Where to be done 

    

 
Plan  
  

List the tasks needed to set 
up this test of change 

Person 
Responsible 

When to 
be done 

Where to be done 

1- 
2- 
3- 
4- 
5- 

   

 
Predict what will happen when 
the test is carried out 

        Measures  to determine if prediction is correct 

1- 
2- 
3- 
4- 

1- 
2- 
3- 
4- 

 
Do  Conduct the test.  Describe what actually happened when you ran the test 
 
Study  Describe the measured results and how they compared to the predictions 
 
Act  Describe what modifications to the plan will be made for the next cycle 

from what you learned 
 
 
 

24



25



26



27



 

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide 

650 California Street, 21st Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94108-2702 
USA 

Tel +1 415 403 1333 
Fax +1 415 403 1334 

milliman.com 

 

 

 August 31, 2017 
 
Ms. Carrie Petersen 
Chief Accounting Officer 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514-2599 
 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 
 
Dear Carrie: 
 
Enclosed is our Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 for the PEPRA defined benefit plan.  
This valuation includes the determination of the required annual employee and employer 
contributions, as well as the GASB 67 and 68 disclosures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
The total normal cost rate for 2017 has been determined to be 23.50%.  This means that the 
employee contribution rate for 2018 will be 50% of that rate rounded to the nearest 0.25%, which 
computes to 11.75%.  The employee contribution rate for 2017 was 12.0%. 
 

Contributions for 2017 Plan Year 
  
Total Required Contribution (Employee and Employer)  $ 27,915 
  
2017 Employee Contributions 
(12.0%1 Employee Contribution Rate)  

  
  (14,253) 

  
Net Employer Contribution   $ 13,662 

 _________________ 
 1 Applies only to compensation up to PEPRA Compensation Limit ($118,775 for 2017). 
 
If you have any questions or would like to review the report with me, please give me a call at  
(415) 394-3716 or e-mail me at rich.wright@milliman.com.  
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Rich Wright 
RAW:km 
enc. 
cc: Kristina Gritsutenko 
 Evelyn Campos-Diaz 
o:\nih\corr\2017\nihp2017v_e.docx 

28

mailto:rich.wright@milliman.com


  

 

Milliman Client Report 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
PEPRA Retirement Plan 
 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 

 

 

 
 

Prepared by: 
 
Richard A. Wright 
FSA, MAAA 
 
Milliman, Inc. 
650 California Street, 21st Floor 
San Francisco, California 94108 
Tel 415 403 1333 Fax 415 403 1334 
milliman.com 
 
August 31, 2017 

 
 

29



 

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide 

650 California Street, 21st Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94108-2702 
USA 

Tel +1 415 403 1333 
Fax +1 415 403 1334 

milliman.com 

 

 
 August 31, 2017 
 
 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
150 Pioneer Lane 
Bishop, California 93514-2599 
 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 
 
 
As part of our engagement with the Healthcare District, we have made an actuarial valuation of the 
Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan as of January 1, 2017.  The purpose of this 
valuation is to determine the recommended contribution pursuant to the Healthcare District’s funding 
policy, and to provide the computations to fulfill financial accounting requirements under GASB 
Statement No. 67 and 68. 
 
In preparing this report, we have relied without audit on information (some oral and some in writing) 
provided by Matrix Trust Company and the Healthcare District.  This information includes, but is not 
limited to, financial information, census data, and plan provisions.  We found this information to be 
reasonably consistent and comparable with information used for other purposes.  The valuation results 
depend on the integrity of this information.  If any of this information is inaccurate or incomplete the 
results may be different and the calculations may need to be revised. 
 
All costs, liabilities, rates of interest, and other factors for the Fund have been determined on the 
basis of actuarial assumptions and methods which are individually reasonable (taking into account 
the experience of the Plan and reasonable expectations); and which, in combination, offer our best 
estimate of anticipated experience affecting the Fund. 
 
This valuation report is only an estimate of the Plan’s financial condition as of a single date.  It can 
neither predict the Plan’s future condition nor guarantee future financial soundness.  Actuarial 
valuations do not affect the ultimate cost of Plan benefits, only the timing of Plan contributions.  
While the valuation is based on an array of individually reasonable assumptions, other assumption 
sets may also be reasonable and valuation results based on those assumptions would be different.  
No one set of assumptions is uniquely correct.  Determining results using alternative assumptions is 
outside the scope of our engagement.  
 
Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from the current measurements presented in 
this report due to such factors as the following: plan experience differing from that anticipated by the 
economic or demographic assumptions; changes in economic or demographic assumptions; 
increases or decreases expected as part of the natural operation of the methodology used for these 
measurements (such as the end of an amortization period or additional cost or contribution 
requirements based on the Fund's funded status); and changes in plan provisions or applicable law. 
Due to the limited scope of our assignment, we did not perform an analysis of the potential range of 

30



Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
August 31, 2017 
Page 2 

Milliman 

 

future measurements.  The Healthcare District has the final decision regarding the appropriateness 
of the assumptions and actuarial cost methods. 
 
Actuarial computations presented in this report are for purposes of determining the recommended 
funding amounts for the Healthcare District and for fulfilling financial accounting requirements under 
GASB Statement No. 67 and 68.  The computations prepared for these two purposes may differ as 
disclosed in our report.  The calculations in the enclosed report have been made on a basis consistent 
with our understanding of the Healthcare District’s funding policy and goals.  Determinations for other 
purposes may be significantly different from the results contained in this report.  Accordingly, additional 
determinations may be needed for other purposes. 
 
Milliman’s work is prepared solely for the internal business use of the Healthcare District.  To the extent 
that Milliman's work is not subject to disclosure under applicable public records laws, Milliman’s work 
may not be provided to third parties without Milliman's prior written consent.  Milliman does not intend 
to benefit or create a legal duty to any third party recipient of its work product.  Milliman’s consent to 
release its work product to any third party may be conditioned on the third party signing a Release, 
subject to the following exception(s): 
 

(a) The Healthcare District may provide a copy of Milliman’s work, in its entirety, to the Healthcare 
District's professional service advisors who are subject to a duty of confidentiality and who 
agree to not use Milliman’s work for any purpose other than to benefit the Healthcare District. 

 
(b) The Healthcare District may provide a copy of Milliman’s work, in its entirety, to other 

governmental entities, as required by law. 
 
No third party recipient of Milliman's work product should rely upon Milliman's work product. Such 
recipients should engage qualified professionals for advice appropriate to their own specific needs. 
 
The consultants who worked on this assignment are pension actuaries.  Milliman’s advice is not 
intended to be a substitute for qualified legal or accounting counsel.   
 
On the basis of the foregoing, we hereby certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this report 
is complete and accurate and has been prepared in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 
principles and practices which are consistent with the applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice of the 
American Academy of Actuaries.  The undersigned is a member of the American Academy of 
Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render 
the actuarial opinion contained herein. 
 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 Richard A. Wright, FSA, MAAA 
 Consulting Actuary 
RAW:km 
o:\nih\corr\2017\nihp2017v_e.docx 
 
 
 

31



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan  
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section Page 
 

 I VALUATION SUMMARY 
  Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 1 
  Highlights ............................................................................................................................. 1 
  Rationale for Significant Assumptions ................................................................................ 1 
  Results of Valuation ............................................................................................................ 3 
 
 II FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 
  Exhibit 1. Summary of Plan Assets ............................................................................ 4 
  Exhibit 2. Summary of Changes in Plan Assets ........................................................ 5 
 
 III CONTRIBUTION EXHIBITS 
  Exhibit 3. Development of Normal Cost ..................................................................... 6 
  Exhibit 4. Actuarial Accrued Liability .......................................................................... 7 
 
 IV GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 
  Exhibit 5. Summary of Plan Assets as of Fiscal Year End  ....................................... 8 
  Exhibit 6. Changes in Plan Assets Over Fiscal Year ................................................. 9 
  Exhibit 7. Money Weighted Investment Return ....................................................... 10 
  Exhibit 8. Net Pension Liability ................................................................................. 11 
  Exhibit 9. Changes in Net Pension Liability ............................................................. 12 
  Exhibit 10. Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability ......................................... 13 
  Exhibit 11. Schedule of Contributions ........................................................................ 14 
  Exhibit 12. Depletion Date Projection ........................................................................ 15 
  Exhibit 13. Calculation of Pension Expense .............................................................. 16 
  Exhibit 14. Schedule of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources ...................... 17 
 
 V APPENDICES 
  Appendix A. Summary of Pension Plan ....................................................................... 18 
  Appendix B. Actuarial Cost Method and Assumptions ................................................. 19 
  Appendix C. Summary of Participant Data ................................................................... 20 
  Appendix D. Glossary of Key Terms ............................................................................. 21 
 
 
 
 

32



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION I.  VALUATION SUMMARY 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 1 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This report sets forth the results of our valuation of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA 
Retirement Plan, as of January 1, 2017.  In Section II we furnish certain financial statements and 
actuarial exhibits of the Fund for the 2016 plan year.  Section III presents the determination of the 
contribution requirement for the 2017 plan year.  Section IV presents the required disclosures under 
GASB 67 and 68. 
 
A summary of the Plan is set forth in Appendix A, and the actuarial assumptions and cost method 
used in determining the costs and liabilities are described in Appendix B.  The membership data is 
shown in Appendix C. 
 
 
HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The total normal cost rate for 2017 has been determined to be 23.50%.  This means that the employee 
contribution rate for 2018 will be 50% of that rate rounded to the nearest 0.25%, which computes to 
11.75%.  The employee contribution rate for 2017 was 12.0%. 
 
The mortality assumption for valuing the actuarial accrued liability has been updated to incorporate the 
MP-2016 projection scale that was published by the Society of Actuaries in October 2016.  This 
projection scale is applied to the RP-2014 Mortality Table starting from a base year of 2006, and 
applies a generational projection going forward.  In the previous valuation, the MP-2015 projection 
scale was used, along with the same base table.  This change resulted in a decrease of (0.33%) in the 
2017 total normal cost rate. 
  
For the 2017 plan year, the total required contribution is $27,915.  The expected employee contribution 
is $14,253, which results in a net employer contribution of $13,662 for 2017, assuming payments are 
made throughout the 2017 plan year. 
 
 
RATIONALE FOR SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS 
 
Mortality.  The mortality assumption has been updated to incorporate the MP-2016 projection scale 
that was published by the Society of Actuaries in October 2016.  This projection scale is applied to 
the RP-2014 Mortality Table starting from a base year of 2006, and applies a generational projection 
going forward.  This assumption is expected to be a best estimate of future mortality experience, 
being based on the latest published study by the Society of Actuaries.  In the prior year’s valuation, 
the MP-2015 projection scale was used, along with the same base table. 
  
Interest.  For the pre-retirement interest assumption, as well as for the post-retirement interest 
assumption for those electing the annuity form of payment at retirement, we have assumed an 
interest rate of 5.00%. Our current long-term expected returns for various asset classes are shown 
below. 

33



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION I.  VALUATION SUMMARY 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 2 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

 
 

Asset Class 
Expected 

Nominal Return 
 

Asset Allocation 
   
U.S. Fixed Income 3.69%  60.00% 
Global Equity 7.89%  40.00% 
   
Expected Average Return (1 yr)   5.37% 
50th Percentile Return (20 yrs)   5.12% 

 
Based on the above asset allocation, we expect the 1-year nominal rate of return to be 5.37%.  The 
50th percentile average return over the next 20 years is expected to be 5.12%. 
 
Inflation.  We have assumed a long term inflation rate of 2.5% per annum.  This is the rate at which 
the PEPRA limit on pensionable compensation - which is currently at $118,775 for 2017 - is 
assumed to grow in the future.  This assumption represents a best estimate of anticipated 
experience, and is the same as the prior year’s assumption. 
 
 

34



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION I.  VALUATION SUMMARY 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 3 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

RESULTS OF VALUATION 
 
The following table compares the principal valuation results with those of the prior plan year. 
 

 January 1, 2017 January 1, 2016 
   
Number of Participants   
Active – Fully vested 0 0 
 – Partially vested 0 0 
 – Nonvested     1     1 
 – Total 1 1 
   
Terminated vested 0 0 
Retired   0   0 
Total participants    1    1 
   
Covered Payroll (Reflecting PEPRA Limit)  $ 118,775  $ 117,020 
   
Actuarial Accrued Liability  $ 27,914  $ 0 
   
Actuarial Assets  $ 27,992  $ 0 
   
Total Normal Cost  $ 27,915  $ 27,992 
As a percentage of applicable payroll  23.50%  23.92% 
   
Employee Contribution  $ 14,253  $ 14,042 
As a percentage of applicable payroll  12.00%  12.00% 
   
Employer Contribution  $ 13,662  $ 13,950 
As a percentage of applicable payroll  11.50%  11.92% 
   
Investment Return (Calendar Year Basis)   
Current annual yield  n/a1  n/a1 

 
GASB 67/68 Measurements as of Fiscal Year End June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 
   
Net Pension Liability   
Total Pension Liability (TPL)  $ 42,389  $ 0 
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP)   46,236   0 
Net Pension Liability (NPL)   (3,847)   0 
FNP as % of TPL   109.08%  n/a 
   
GASB 68 Pension Expense for Fiscal Year  $ 18,311  $ 0 

 
 1 Measurement is not yet applicable since there were no plan assets until the very end of 2016, when the first 

employee and employer contributions were made to the plan. 

35



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 4 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 1.  SUMMARY OF PLAN ASSETS 
 
 
The valuation assets as of January 1, 2017, are shown below.  There were no plan assets until the 
first employee and employer contributions were made on December 30, 2016, shortly following the 
establishment of the Plan.  Therefore, plan assets as of January 1, 2017 are entirely in cash, not 
having yet been transferred to the trust account subsequently established with the Matrix Trust 
Company.  Development of the assets is as follows: 
 

 January 1, 2017  January 1, 2016 
    
Plan Assets    
Cash  $ 23,330   $ 0 
    
Accrued Employee Contributions   4,662    0 
    
Actuarial Assets  $ 27,992   $    0 
    
Asset Allocation    
Cash  83.3%   0.0% 
Accrued Employee Contributions      16.7%       0.0% 
    
Total  100.0%   0.0% 

 
Note: We have not audited the fund's assets shown above.  We have relied on the information furnished 
by the Healthcare District. 

 
 

36



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 5 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION II.  FINANCIAL EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 2.  SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN PLAN ASSETS 
 
 
Plan assets increase or decrease each year due to employee contributions, employer contributions, 
investment income, benefit payments to retiring participants, plan expenses paid by the trust fund, 
and any realized and unrealized gains and losses from investments. 
 

 PLAN YEAR ENDING 
 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 
   
Beginning Balance  $ 0  $ 0 
   
Additions:   
Employee contributions   9,380   0 
Employer contributions   13,950   0 
Investment income   0   0 
Total   23,330      0 
   
Subtractions:   
Benefit payments   (0)   (0) 
Administrative expenses   (0)   (0) 
Total      0      0 
   
Ending Balance  $ 23,330  $ 0 

 
 
 

37



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 6 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION III.  CONTRIBUTION EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 3.  DEVELOPMENT OF NORMAL COST 
 
 
The normal cost is calculated according to the actuarial cost method.  Under the entry age normal 
cost method, the normal cost is calculated as the sum of the normal costs for individual participants. 
A participant’s normal cost is calculated by allocating the value of future benefits as a level 
percentage of earnings over the participant’s working lifetime.  The normal cost is as follows: 
 

 PLAN YEAR BEGINNING 
 January 1, 2017  January 1, 2016 
    
Total Normal Cost  $ 27,915   $ 27,992 
Covered Payroll   118,775    117,020 
Total Normal Cost Rate  23.50%   23.92% 
    
PEPRA Employee Contribution Rate – Current Year 
(50% of Prior Year Total Normal Cost Rate, Rounded 
to Nearest 0.25%)  12.00%   12.00% 
    
Total Normal Cost  $ 27,915   $ 27,992 
Expected employee contributions   (14,253)    (14,042) 
Employer Normal Cost for 2017   13,662    13,950 
    
Employer Normal Cost Rate  11.50%   11.92% 
    
PEPRA Employee Contribution Rate – Next Year 
 

 11.75% 
 for 2018  

 12.00% 
 for 2017 

    
 
 

38



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 7 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION III.  CONTRIBUTION EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 4.  ACTUARIAL ACCRUED LIABILITY 
 
 
The actuarial accrued liability has been calculated using the entry age normal actuarial cost method, 
and is equal to the present value of benefits for all members less the present value of future normal 
costs for active employees.  Any actuarial liability in excess of the plan’s assets is called an unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability. 
 

 
As of 

January 1, 2017  
As of 

January 1, 2016 
    
Present Value of Benefits    
Active participants  $ 349,998   $ 339,648 
Terminated vested participants   0    0 
Participants currently receiving payments   0    0 
Total PVB  $ 349,998   $ 339,648 
    
Present Value of Future Normal Cost    
Active employees  $ 322,084   $ 339,648 
    
Actuarial Accrued Liability    
Active participants   27,914    0 
Terminated vested participants   0    0 
Participants currently receiving payments   0    0 
Total actuarial accrued liability  $ 27,914   $ 0 
    
Actuarial Assets  $ 27,992   $ 0 
    
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability  $ 0   $ 0 

 
 
 
 

39



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 8 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 5.  SUMMARY OF PLAN ASSETS AS OF FISCAL YEAR END 
 
The Plan assets are maintained by Matrix Trust Company (account #a7722).  Plan assets are the 
market value of assets as of the measurement date. 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 
   
Matrix Trust Company   

– Cash Equivalents  $ 46,236  $ 0 
   

 
Total Assets  $ 46,236  $ 0 
   
   
   
Asset Allocation   
 Cash Equivalents  100.0%  n/a 

 
 
 
Note: We have not audited the fund’s assets shown above.  We have relied on the information 
furnished by Matrix Trust Company. 
 

40



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 9 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 6.  CHANGES IN PLAN ASSETS OVER FISCAL YEAR 
 
Plan assets increase or decrease each year due to employee contributions, employer contributions, 
investment income, benefit payments to retired participants, and plan expenses paid by the trust 
fund.  
 

 FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 
   
Beginning Balance  $ 0  $ 0 
   
Additions   
Employee contributions  $ 23,164  $ 0 
Employer contributions   23,072   0 
Investment  income   0   0 
Total  $ 46,236  $ 0 
   
Subtractions   
Benefit payments  $ (0)  $ (0) 
Administrative expenses   (0)   (0) 
Total  $ (0)  $ (0) 
   
Ending Balance  $ 46,236  $ 0 
   

 

41



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 10 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 7.  MONEY WEIGHTED INVESTMENT RETURN 
 
GASB 67 requires the disclosure of the money-weighted rate of return on plan investments. The 
money-weighted rate of return considers the changing amounts actually invested during a period 
and weights the amount of pension plan investments by the proportion of time they are available to 
earn a return during that period.  External cash flows are determined on a monthly basis and are 
assumed to occur at the beginning of each month.  External cash inflows are netted with external 
cash outflows, resulting in a net external cash flow in each month.  The money-weighted rate of 
return is calculated net of investment expenses. 
 

 
Net External 
Cash Flows 

 
Periods  
Invested 

 
Period  
Weight 

Net External Cash 
Flows with 

Interest 
     
Beginning Balance – July 1, 2016  $ 0 12 1.00  $ 0 
     
Monthly Net External Cash Flows:     
July 0 11.5 0.96 0 
August 0 10.5 0.88  0 
September 0 9.5 0.79  0 
October 0 8.5 0.71  0 
November 0 7.5 0.63  0 
December 23,330 6.5 0.54  23,330 
January 6,615 5.5 0.46  6,615 
February 6,615 4.5 0.38  6,615 
March 5,278 3.5 0.29  5,278 
April 733 2.5 0.21  733 
May 2,199 1.5 0.13  2,199 
June 1,466 0.5 0.04  1,466 
     
Ending Value – June 30, 2017  $ 46,236    $ 46,236  

 

Year Ending June 30 
Money Weighted 

Investment Return 
  

2017 0.00% 
2016 n/a 
2015 n/a 
2014 n/a 
2013 n/a 
2012 n/a 
2011 n/a 
2010 n/a 
2009 n/a 
2008 n/a 

 

42



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 11 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 8. NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 
The Total Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date, 
calculated based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions listed below and shown in 
Appendix B, and was then projected forward to the measurement date taking into account any 
significant changes between the valuation date and the fiscal year end as prescribed by GASB 67 
and 68. 
 
The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate that is a blend of the expected investment rate of 
return and a high quality bond index rate.  The expected investment rate of return applies for as long 
as the plan assets (including future contributions) are projected to be sufficient to make the 
projected benefit payments.  If plan assets are projected to be depleted at some point in the future, 
the rate of return of a high quality bond index is used for the period after the depletion date.  Since 
there is no depletion date for this plan, the expected rate of return is used as the discount rate. 
 
 

 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 
   
Total Pension Liability  $ 42,389  $ 0 
Fiduciary Net Position   46,236   0 
Net Pension Liability  $ (3,847)  $ 0 
Fiduciary Net Position as a % of Total Pension Liability  109.08%  n/a 
   
Covered Payroll  $ 117,020  $ n/a 
Net Pension Liability as of % of Covered Payroll  (3.29%)  n/a 
   
Valuation Date  1/1/2017  1/1/2016 
Measurement date  6/30/2017  6/30/2016 
GASB 67 Reporting date  6/30/2017  6/30/2016 
   
Depletion date  None  None 
Discount rate  5.00%  5.00% 
Expected rate of return, net of investment expenses  5.00%  5.00% 
Municipal bond rate  n/a  n/a 

 
 As of June 30, 2017 

Sensitivity Analysis 

1% Decrease 
in Discount Rate 

4.00% 

Current 
Discount Rate 

5.00% 

1% Increase 
in Discount Rate 

6.00% 
    
Total Pension Liability  $ 49,811   $ 42,389   $ 36,037 
Fiduciary Net Position   46,236      46,236    46,236    
Net Pension Liability  $ 3,575   $ (3,847)   $ (10,199) 

 

43



 

Milliman 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 12 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT 9. CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 
GASB 67 requires disclosure of the changes in the Net Pension Liability. 
 

 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 

Increase / (Decrease) 

 
Total Pension 

Liability 
Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

Net Pension 
Liability 

    
Balance as of Beginning of Year  $ 0   $ 0   $ 0  
    
Service cost  $ 0   $ 0   $ 0 
Interest on the total pension liability 0  0  0  
Changes of benefit terms 42,389  0  42,389 
Differences between actual and expected 
experience with regard to economic or 
demographic factors 0  0  0 
Changes of assumptions 0  0  0 
Benefit payments 0 0 0  
Employer contributions 0  23,072  (23,072) 
Employee contributions 0  23,164  (23,164)  
Net investment income 0  0  0 
Administrative expense   0    0   0  
Total changes  $ 42,389  $ 46,236  $ (3,847)  
    
Balance as of End of Year  $ 42,389   $ 46,236   $ (3,847)  

 
 
 

44



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan         13 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

EXHIBIT 10. SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY 
 
GASB 67 requires a 10-Year schedule of changes in the Net Pension Liability. 
 
 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 
      
Total Pension Liability - Beginning of Year  $ 0  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a 
Service cost   0   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Interest on the total pension liability   0   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Changes of benefit terms   42,389   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Differences between actual and expected experience 
   with regard to economic or demographic factors   0   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 

Changes of assumptions   0   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Benefit payments   (0)   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Total changes  $ 42,389   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Total Pension Liability - End of Year  $ 42,389  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a 
      
Fiduciary Net Position – Beginning of Year  $ 0  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a 
Employer contributions   23,072   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Employee contributions   23,164   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Net investment income   0   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Benefit payments   (0)   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Administrative expense   (0)   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Total changes  $ 46,236   n/a   n/a   n/a   n/a 
Fiduciary Net Position – End of Year  $ 46,236  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a 
      
Net Pension Liability - End of Year  $ (3,847)  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a 
      
Fiduciary Net Position as a % of TPL   109.08%   n/a%   n/a%   n/a%   n/a% 
Covered Payroll  $ 117,020  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a  $ n/a 
Net Pension Liability as a % of Covered Payroll   (3.29%)   n/a%   n/a%   n/a%   n/a% 

 

45



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 14 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

EXHIBIT 11.  SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
GASB 67 requires disclosure of the Schedule of Employer Contributions. 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
June 30 

Actuarially 
Determined 
Contribution 

Actual 
Employer  

Contribution 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

 
Covered 
Payroll 

Contribution 
as a % of 

Covered Payroll 
      

2008 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2009 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2010 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2011 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2012 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2013 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2014 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2015 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2016 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A  
2017  $ 13,950   $ 13,950   $ 0  $ 117,020   11.92% 

 
 
 The above schedule shows the applicable amounts for the calendar plan year ending within fiscal 

year, on which the Actuarially Determined Contribution is based. 

46



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 15 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

EXHIBIT 12.  DEPLETION DATE PROJECTION 
 
GASB 67 and 68 generally require that a blended discount rate be used to measure the Total 
Pension Liability (the Actuarial Accrued Liability calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normal 
Cost Method).  The long-term expected return on plan investments may be used to discount 
liabilities to the extent that the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is projected 
to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.  A 20-year high quality (AA/Aa or higher) 
municipal bond rate must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position is not projected to 
cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. 
 
Determining the discount rate under GASB 67 and 68 will often require that the actuary perform 
complex projections of future benefit payments and asset values. GASB 67 and 68 (paragraph 29) 
do allow for alternative evaluations of projected solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made. 
GASB does not contemplate a specific method for making an alternative evaluation of sufficiency; it 
is left to professional judgment. 
 
The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of sufficiency for the Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan: 
 

- The Actuarially Determined Contribution is based on a closed amortization period, which 
means that payment of the Actuarially Determined Contribution each year will bring the plan 
to a 100% funded position by the end of the amortization period. 
 

- GASB 67 and 68 specify that the projections regarding future solvency assume that plan 
assets earn the assumed rate of return and there are no future changes in the plan 
provisions or actuarial methods and assumptions, which means that the projections would 
not reflect any adverse future experience which might impact the plan’s funded position. 
 

Based on these circumstances, it is our professional opinion that the detailed depletion date 
projections outlined in GASB 67 and 68 will show that the Fiduciary Net Position is always projected 
to be sufficient to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses. 
 

47



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 16 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

EXHIBIT 13.  CALCULATION OF PENSION EXPENSE 
 
GASB 68 requires the calculation of the pension expense for fiscal years beginning on or after 
June 15, 2014. 
 
 For the Fiscal Year Ending 
Pension Expense June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 
   
Service cost  $ 0   $ 0  
Interest on the total pension liability   0    0  
Effect of plan changes   42,389    0  
Administrative expense   0    0  
Employee contributions   (23,164)    (0)  
Expected investment return, net of investment expenses   (1,142)   (0) 
   
Recognition of Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources   
 Economic/demographic (gains) or losses   0    0  
 Assumption changes or inputs   0    0  
 Investment (gains) or losses  $ 228  $ 0 
 Total Recognition  $ 228   $ 0  
   
Pension expense  $ 18,311   $ 0  

 
 As of June 30, 2017 

Deferred Inflows / Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 
   
Differences between expected and actual experience  $ 0   $ 0 
Changes of assumptions   0    0  
Net difference between projected and actual earnings   914   0  
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date  $ 0   $ 0  
Total  $ 914  $ 0  

 
Amounts currently reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 
Recognized Deferred 

Inflows/Outflows 
2018  $ 228  
2019    228 
2020    228 
2021    230 
2022   0  

Thereafter   0  
 
 

48



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION IV.  GASB 67/68 EXHIBITS 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 17 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

EXHIBIT 14.  SCHEDULE OF DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
Investment (gains)/losses are recognized in pension expense over a period of five years.  
Economic/demographic (gains)/losses and assumption changes or inputs are recognized over the 
average remaining service life for all active and inactive members. 
 

Date 
Established 

Original 
Amount 

Original 
Recognition 

Period 

Amount 
Recognized in 

Expense 
FYE 2017 

Balance of 
Deferred 
Inflows 
6/30/17 

Balance of 
Deferred 
Outflows 
6/30/17 

      
Investment (gains) or losses    

      
6/30/2017  $  1,142 5.0  $  228  $ 0  $ 914  

      
      

Economic/demographic (gains) or losses    
      

6/30/2017  $ 0 n/a  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 
      
      

Assumption changes or inputs    
      

6/30/2017  $ 0 n/a  $ 0  $ 0  $ 0 
      
      
      

 
 

49



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION V.  APPENDICES 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 18 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

APPENDIX A.  SUMMARY OF PENSION PLAN 
 
 
The following paragraphs are only a brief summary of the more important provisions of the plan. In 
the event there are any inconsistencies between statements contained in this Appendix and the plan 
document, the provisions of the plan document shall control. 
 
Effective Date: January 1, 2016. 
 
Plan Eligibility: The CEO of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District. 
 
Vesting: 100% vesting after 5 years of Credited Service, or upon total and permanent disability. 
 
Normal Retirement Date: The first day of the month coinciding with or following the later of the 
Participant’s attainment of age 62 or the 5th anniversary of participation. 
 
Normal Retirement Benefit: 2% of Average Annual Compensation multiplied by years of Credited 
Service. 
 
Average Annual Compensation: Average of compensation for the highest consecutive 36-month 
period preceding the determination date. Compensation is the normal monthly rate of pay or base 
pay of the employee paid in cash for services rendered on a full time basis during normal working 
hours.  Compensation recognized by the plan may not exceed the limit specified by PEPRA, which 
is $118,775 for 2017. 
 
Accrued Benefit: Normal Retirement Benefit based upon credited service to date. 
 
Normal Form of Retirement Benefit: Life Annuity. 
 
Early Retirement: Eligible beginning at age 52 with at least 5 years of credited service.  The benefit 
rate is reduced by 0.025% for each calendar quarter early (0.1% per year).  For example, the benefit 
rate is 1% for early retirement at age 52. 
 
Postponed Retirement: For retirements after age 62, the benefit rate is increased by 0.025% for 
each calendar quarter postponed (0.1% per year), up to a maximum benefit rate of 2.5% for 
retirements at age 67 or later. 
 
Pre-Retirement Death Benefit: If a vested participant dies prior to retirement, his or her beneficiary 
will receive the actuarial equivalent of his or her accrued benefit. 
 
Employee Contributions: 50% of the normal cost rate, rounded to the nearest 0.25%. 
 
 
 

50



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION V.  APPENDICES 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 19 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

APPENDIX B.  ACTUARIAL COST METHOD AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
The following cost method and assumptions were used in valuing the benefits of all participants. 
 

 January 1, 2017  January 1, 2016 
    
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method  Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
    
Form of Payment Election 100% are assumed to elect an 

annuity. 
 100% are assumed to elect an 

annuity. 
    
Interest Rate     
 Pre-retirement 5.00%  5.00% 
 Post-ret. (Annuity elected) 5.00%  5.00% 
    
Mortality    
 Pre-retirement RP-2014 Healthy Mortality with 

Generational Projection from 2006 
Base Year using Scale MP-2016 

 RP-2014 Healthy Mortality with 
Generational Projection from 2006 
Base Year using Scale MP-2015 

    
 Post-ret. (Annuity elected) RP-2014 Healthy Mortality with 

Generational Projection from 2006 
Base Year using Scale MP-2016 

 RP-2014 Healthy Mortality with 
Generational Projection from 2006 
Base Year using Scale MP-2015 

    
Salary Scale 4.00%  4.00% 
    
Inflation 2.50%  2.50% 
    
Administrative Expenses None  None 
    
Disability    
 Disablement Rate None  None 
 Disabled Annuitants Mortality N/A  N/A 
    
Withdrawal Rates None  None 
    
Retirement Age Age 65  Age 65 
    
Asset Valuation Method Market value  Market value 

51



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION V.  APPENDICES 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 20 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

APPENDIX C.  SUMMARY OF PARTICIPANT DATA 
 

Active Participants as of January 1, 2017 
 YEARS OF SERVICE  

Age 0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30+ Total 

Under 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
25 - 29 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
30 – 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
35 - 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
40 - 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
45 - 49 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
50 - 54 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 
55 - 59 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
60 - 64 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
65 - 69 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

70 & Over 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 

52



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION V.  APPENDICES 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 21 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

APPENDIX D.  GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS 
 
 
Actuarial Accrued Liability.  The Present Value of Future Benefits allocated to past service in 
accordance with the actuarial cost method. 
 
Accumulated Benefit Obligation (ABO).  The present value of benefits accrued as of the valuation 
date.  The ABO includes both vested and nonvested benefits, but does not include the cost of 
additional service or compensation increases after the valuation date.  
 
Actuarial Gains and Losses.  Changes to the funded status due to deviations from the actuarial 
assumptions.  The deviations may result from gains and losses from investments, employee 
turnover, disability, retirement, mortality, and administrative expenses. 
 
Actuarially Determined Contribution.  A target or recommended contribution to a defined benefit 
pension plan for the reporting period, determined based on the funding policy and most recent 
measurement available when the contribution for the reporting period was adopted. 
 
Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources.  Portion of changes in net pension liability that is not 
immediately recognized in Pension Expense.  These changes include differences between expected 
and actual experience, changes in assumptions, and differences between expected and actual 
earnings on plan investments. 
 
Fiduciary Net Position.  Equal to market value of assets. 
 
Funded Status.  A comparison of the plan assets against liabilities for future benefits.  The funded 
status will differ depending on which benefit liability is being compared.  For example, the actuarial 
accrued liability can include the value of future compensation increases, but the present value of 
accumulated benefits does not.  The funded status is also dependent on the interest rate used to 
discount future benefits back to the present. 
 
Money-Weighted Rate of Return.  The internal rate of return on pension plan investments, net of 
investment expenses. 
 
Municipal Bond Rate.  Yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. 
 
Net Pension Liability.  Total Pension Liability minus the Plan's Fiduciary Net Position. 
 
Normal Cost or Service Cost.  The value of benefits earned for one year of service.  The normal 
cost is calculated in accordance with the actuarial cost method. The accumulation of all normal 
costs assigned to past service equals the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The ABO normal cost is the 
increase in the ABO due to one additional year of service and one additional year of compensation 
increases. 
 
Present Value of Accumulated Benefits.  This is the same as the ABO. 
 

53



 

Milliman 

Milliman Client Report SECTION V.  APPENDICES 

Northern Inyo Healthcare District PEPRA Retirement Plan 22 
Actuarial Valuation as of January 1, 2017 

 
 

Present Value of Future Benefits.  The sum of all benefits expected to be paid in the future by the 
plan, with the payments discounted to the present using the valuation interest rate.  This includes 
benefits to be earned in the future for current employees. 
 
Present Value of Future Normal Cost.  The sum of all future normal costs expected for current 
employees, with the costs discounted back to the present using the valuation interest rate. 
 
Projected Benefit Payments.  All benefits estimated to be payable through the pension plan to 
current active and inactive employees as a result of their past service and expected future service. 
 
Total Pension Liability.  The portion of actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that is 
attributable to past periods of member service using the Entry Age Normal cost method based on 
the requirements of GASB 67 and 68. 
 
Vested Benefits.  These include benefits to which a plan participant has earned a nonforfeitable 
right as a result of having satisfied the applicable service requirement(s) for such benefits under the 
plan, which include normal retirement benefits, early retirement benefits, and the pre-retirement 
spouse’s survivor annuity. 
 
 

54



55



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

DISTRICT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-05 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 730 of the statutes of 1976 Section 16429.1 was added 
to the California Government Code to create a Local Agency Investment Fund in the State 
Treasury for the deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of investment by the State 
Treasurer; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District does hereby 
find that the deposit and withdrawal of money in the Local Agency Investment Fund in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 16429.1 of the Government Code for the purpose of 
investment as stated therein as in the best interests of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District, 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District does hereby authorize the deposit and withdrawal of Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the State Treasury in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 16429.1 of the Government Code for the purpose of 
investment as stated therein, and verification by the State Treasurer’s Office of all banking 
information provided in that regard. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors, 
meeting in regular session this 20th day of September, 2017 that the Chief Executive Officer 
Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA, Chief Operating Officer, Kelli Huntsinger and Chief Financial Officer 
John Tremble, or their successors in office, shall be authorized to order the deposit or 
withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be made a part of the minutes of this 
meeting. 

 
      _____________________________    ___________ 
      Peter Watercott, President    Date 
      Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
 
 
 
                           Attest:    _____________________________    ___________ 
      M.C. Hubbard, Secretary     Date 
      Northern Inyo Healthcare District   

56



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

DISTRICT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-06 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 932 of the statutes of 1933 was added to the California 
Government Code to create Health Care Districts; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District does hereby 
find that the deposit and withdrawal of money, the creation and maintenance of accounts for 
the operation of the Health Care District and its business entities as outlined in Section 1, 
Division 23, Article 2  of the Statute and, 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District does hereby authorize the creation and maintenance of accounts for the 
deposit of monies and withdrawal of monies of Northern Inyo Healthcare District for the 
purpose of operating the business entities of the District and, 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors, 
meeting in regular session this 20th day of September, 2017 that the Chief Executive Officer 
Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA; Chief Operating Officer, Kelli Huntsinger; and Chief Financial 
Officer John Tremble, or their successors in office, shall be authorized to operate accounts as 
listed in Addendum A  and to create additional accounts as needed to meet the business needs 
of the Healthcare District in accordance with Section 1, Division 23, Article 2 of the California 
Chapter 932 Statute. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be made a part of the minutes of this 
meeting. 

 

 
      _____________________________    ___________ 
      Peter Watercott, President    Date 
      Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
 
 
 
                           Attest:    _____________________________    ___________ 
      M.C. Hubbard, Secretary     Date 
      Northern Inyo Healthcare District   

57



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT 

DISTRICT BOARD RESOLUTION 17-07 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 932 of the statutes of 1933 was added to the California 
Government Code to create Health Care Districts; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo Healthcare District does hereby 
find that the deposit and withdrawal of money, the creation and maintenance of accounts for 
the benefits and compensation of the employees of the Health Care District and its business 
entities as outlined in Section 1, Division 23, Article 2  of the Statute and, 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Northern Inyo 
Healthcare District does hereby authorize the creation and maintenance of accounts the 
deposit of monies and withdrawal of monies of Northern Inyo Healthcare District for the 
purpose of operating the business entities of the District and, 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors, 
meeting in regular session this 20th day of September, 2017 that the Chief Executive Officer 
Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA; Chief Human Resources Officer, Evelyn Campos-Diaz; and Chief 
Financial Officer John Tremble, or their successors in office, shall be authorized to operate 
accounts as listed in Addendum A. and to create additional accounts as needed to meet the 
business needs of the Healthcare District in accordance with Section 1, Division 23, Article 2 of 
the California Chapter 932 Statute. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution be made a part of the minutes of this 
meeting. 

 

 

 
      _____________________________    ___________ 
      Peter Watercott, President    Date 
      Northern Inyo Healthcare District 
 
                           Attest:    _____________________________    ___________ 
      M.C. Hubbard, Secretary     Date 
      Northern Inyo Healthcare District   

58



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                    August 16, 2017 
Regular Meeting                 Page 1 of 6 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 pm by John Ungersma MD, Vice 
President. 

   
PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ABSENT 
 
 
 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
LABORATORY POLICY 
AND PROCEDURE 
APPROVALS 
 
 
 
 
 
EMERGENCY PAGING 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE 
 
 
POLICY AND 
PROCEDURE ANNUAL 
APPROVALS 
 
 
 

John Ungersma MD, Vice President  
M.C. Hubbard, Secretary 
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Treasurer 
Phil Hartz, Member at Large   
Kevin S. Flanigan MD, MBA, Chief Executive Officer 
Kristina Gritsutenko, Chief Financial Officer 
Carrie Petersen, Chief Accounting Officer 
Evelyn Campos Diaz, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Sandy Blumberg, Executive Assistant 
 
Peter Watercott, President 
Richard Meredick MD, Chief of Staff 
Kelli Huntsinger, Chief Operating Officer 
Tracy Aspel RN, Chief Nursing Officer 
 
Doctor Ungersma asked if any members of the public wished to speak on 
any items not on the agenda on any matters within the jurisdiction of the 
District Board.  Members of the audience will have an opportunity to 
address the Board on every item on the agenda, and speakers are limited 
to a maximum of three minutes each.  Comments were heard from Pat 
West with Pioneer Home Health, who updated the Board on the services 
that Pioneer provides for this community. 
 
 
Chief Executive Officer Kevin S. Flanigan, MD, MBA called attention to 
the following Laboratory Department policies and procedures: 

- Gastric Occult Blood Testing 
- Hemoccult Sensa – Fecal Occult Blood 

It was moved by M.C. Hubbard, seconded by Mary Mae Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve both Laboratory policies and procedures 
as presented. 
 
Doctor Flanigan also called attention to a hospital wide policy and 
procedure titled Emergency Paging.  It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, 
seconded by Phil Hartz, and unanimously passed to approve the 
Emergency Paging policy and procedure as presented. 
 
Doctor Ungersma called attention to a list of hospital wide policies and 
procedures presented for annual approval, as listed on Attachment A to 
the agenda for this meeting.  It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by 
Ms. Hubbard, and unanimously passed to approve all policies and 
procedures listed on Attachment A to the agenda as presented.   
 

59



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                    August 16, 2017 
Regular Meeting                 Page 2 of 6 
BOARD RESOLUTION 
17-03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DATA AND 
INFORMATION 
COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
QUARTERLY 
COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
CHIEF OPERATING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
 

Doctor Flanigan called attention to District Board Resolution 17-03 which 
authorizes the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to 
deposit or withdrawal monies from the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF).  The purpose of the Resolution is to replace outgoing Chief 
Accounting Officer Carrie Petersen as the person authorized to make 
LAIF fund transactions, in preparation for her retirement in the month of 
October.  It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve District Board Resolution 17-03 as 
presented. 
 
Doctor Ungersma called attention to the Financial and Statistical Reports 
for the period ending June 30 2017, requesting that they be removed from 
the consent agenda and added to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) report 
for this meeting.  It was moved by Mr. Hartz, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, 
and unanimously passed to approve moving the Financial and Statistical 
Reports for the period ending June 30 2017 off the consent agenda to 
include them as part of the Chief Financial Officer report for this meeting. 
 
Doctor Ungersma then called attention to the remaining 2 items listed on 
the Consent Agenda for this meeting: 

- Approval of the minutes of the July 19 2017 regular meeting 
- 2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring, August 2017 

It was moved by Mr. Hartz, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously 
passed to approve both consent agenda items as presented. 
 
Doctor Flanigan introduced Chief Financial Officer Kristina Gritsutenko 
as the new chairperson of the District’s Data and Information Committee.  
Ms. Gritsutenko provided a Data and Information (D&I) Committee 
report which included stating that the D & I Committee will join forces 
with the Athena Implementation group to focus on the District’s transition 
from the McKesson health information system to the AthenaHealth 
product.   
 
Compliance Officer Patty Dickson provided a Quarterly Compliance 
Report, which included a comprehensive Compliance Program review 
including a summary of breaches, audits, and Compliance Department 
projects.    
 
Doctor Flanigan reviewed Medical Staff Administration Pillars of 
Excellence for July 1 2016 through June 30 2017, which will be provided 
on a quarterly basis going forward.       
 
On behalf of Chief Operating Officer Kelli Huntsinger, Doctor Flanigan 
reported that the NIHD Lab recently underwent a Joint Commission 
survey, and was re-accredited as a result.   He additionally noted that the 
NIHD Quality Department now reports to Ms. Huntsinger, and reported 
that the Dietary Department is implementing improvements to hospital 
food services. 

60



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                    August 16, 2017 
Regular Meeting                 Page 3 of 6 
CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF NURSING 
OFFICER REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF HUMAN 
RELATIONS OFFICER 
REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHIEF OF STAFF 
REPORT 

Chief Financial Officer Kristina Gritsutenko reviewed the preliminary 
financial and statistical reports for the year ending June 30 2017, and 
noted the following: 

- Wipfli LLP is on site this week to conduct the District’s annual 
audit.  The financial and statistical reports presented today will be 
adjusted as a result of their findings and some changes have 
already been made since the initial reports were published. 

- The statement of operations for the fiscal year ending (FYE) 
6/30/17 shows a significant loss for the year, and it appears that 
the loss may be adjusted even further to the negative.  Significant 
negative adjustments have already been made relating to the 
employee pension plan and tax revenue adjustments. 

- Gross patient revenue was under budget for the year and appears 
to be trending downward. 

- Total expenses were over budget for the year by approximately 1 
million dollars.  Increases were also seen in bad debt and charity 
care, and inventory on hand seems very high. 

- The District’s overall financial picture has deteriorated 
significantly from the previous year.  Leadership will address this 
immediately and determine if strategic changes need to be made. 

At the conclusion of the financial report it was noted that budget 
workshops with the Board of Directors will likely be scheduled in the 
upcoming months.  The Board indicated that philosophically, they are 
interested in expanding services rather than contracting them in order to 
improve the District’s financial picture.  It was then moved by Ms. 
Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously passed to approve 
the preliminary financial and statistical reports for the period ending June 
30 2016, with the understanding that they will be adjusted as a result of 
the District’s annual audit. 
 
On behalf of Chief Nursing Officer Tracy Aspel RN, Doctor Flanigan 
reported the following: 

- The District is implementing additional safety procedures 
involving patient IV’s in order to prevent dirty needle sticks 

- The District’s Medication Errors Reduction Plan (MERP) is 
helping to reduce incidents of medication errors 

 
Chief Human Relations Officer Evelyn Campos provided a bi-monthly 
Human Relations department report which included the following: 

- Results of the Employee Satisfaction Survey are being rolled out 
to District employees 

- 18 action plans have been put in place to engage the District 
workforce  

- Consideration is being given to combining the PPAC and 
Workforce Experience Committees into one group 

 
On behalf of Chief of Staff Richard Meredick, MD, Doctor Flanigan 
reported following careful review, consideration, and approval by the 

61



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                    August 16, 2017 
Regular Meeting                 Page 4 of 6 
 
 
 
POLICIES, 
PROCEDURES, 
PROTOCOLS, AND 
ORDER SETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CORE PRIVILEGE 
FORMS BY SERVICE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ANNUAL REVIEW, 
PEDIATRIC CRITICAL 
INDICATORS 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
APPOINTMENT/ 
PRIVILEGING 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
TEMPORARY 
PRIVILEGES 
 
 
 
 
 
 

appropriate Committees the Medical Executive Committee recommends 
approval of the following hospital wide Policies, Procedures, Protocols, 
and order sets: 

• Childbirth Photography/Videotaping 
• Plan to Eliminate or Substantially Reduce Medication-Related 

Errors – MERP 2017 
• Anesthesia in Ancillary Departments 
• Hydrotherapy Pool Lippincott Procedure with Critical Notes and 

Consent 
• Fall Prevention and Management (with attachments) 
• Patient Transfer/Discharge to Another Facility 
• Medical Staff and Allied Health Professional Application Fee 

Processing 
It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve all seven Policies, Procedures, Protocols, 
and order sets as presented. 
 
Doctor Flanigan additionally reported that the Medical Executive 
Committee also recommends approval of the following Core Privilege 
Forms by Service: 

• Pediatrics 
• Orthopedic Surgery 
• General Surgery 

It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and passed to 
approve all three Core Privilege Forms by Service, with Director Hartz 
abstaining from the vote. 
 
Doctor Flanigan also reported the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends annual approval of the Pediatric Critical Indicators for 
2017.  It was moved by Doctor Ungersma, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and 
unanimously passed to approve the Pediatric Critical Indicators for 2017 
as presented. 
 
Doctor Flanigan then reported the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends Medical Staff Appointment and Privileging of Arash 
Radparvar MD (radiology – provisional active staff).  It was moved by 
Mr. Hartz, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously passed to 
approve the privileging of Arash Radparvar MD as recommended. 
 
Doctor Flanigan additionally reported following careful review, 
consideration, and approval by the appropriate Committees the Medical 
Executive Committee recommends approval of the following Temporary 
Privileges for 60 service days in calendar year 2017 (except where noted): 

• William Feske, MD (Bishop Radiology Group) – 90 calendar days 
• Brian Mikolasko, MD (hospitalist – locums) 
• Kathy Burch, MD (hospitalist – locums) 
• Louisa Salisbury, MD (Pediatrics – locums) – pending the 

submission of proof of insurance 

62



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                    August 16, 2017 
Regular Meeting                 Page 5 of 6 
 
 
 
EXTENSION OF 
TEMPORARY 
PRIVILEGES 
 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
ADVANCEMENT 
 
 
 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 
RESIGNATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER 
REPORTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

It was moved by Ms. Hubbard, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and 
unanimously passed to approve all four temporary privileges as requested. 
 
The Medical Executive Committee additionally recommends extension of 
temporary privileges for Wilbur Peralta, MD (hospitalist) from 8/31/17 to 
12/31/17 to provide necessary coverage of the hospitalist service.  It was 
moved by Mr. Hartz, seconded by Ms. Kilpatrick, and unanimously 
passed to approve the extension of temporary privileges for Wilbur 
Peralta MD as requested. 
 
Doctor Flanigan also reported the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends advancement from provisional to full active staff for Jay K. 
Harness MD (breast surgery).  It was moved by Ms. Kilpatrick, seconded 
by Ms. Hubbard, and unanimously passed to approve the Medical Staff 
advancement of Jay K. Harness MD as requested. 
 
Doctor Flanigan additionally reported the Medical Executive Committee 
recommends approval of the following Medical Staff resignations: 

• Carolyn Saba, MD (anesthesiology) – effective 7/26/17 
• Shruti Ramakrishna, MD (family medicine) – effective 9/5/17 
• Manish Pandya, MD (internal medicine/hospitalist) – effective 

9/1/17 
It was moved by Mr. Hartz, seconded by Ms. Hubbard, and unanimously 
passed to approve all three Medical Staff resignations as requested. 
 
Doctor Ungersma asked if any members of the Board of Directors wished 
to report on any items of interest.  Director Hubbard reported she is 
pleased to hear that same day visits at the Rural Health Clinic are going 
well, and Jennifer Figueroa PA who provides those services is being well 
received by the community.  Director Ungersma also commented that the 
District may want to look into the possibility of obtaining a USDA 
(United States Department of Agriculture) loan in order to fund 
construction of a new Rural Health Clinic building.  No other comments 
were heard. 
 
At 7:07 pm Doctor Ungersma announced the meeting would adjourn to 
closed session to allow the Board of Directors to: 

A. Hear reports on the hospital quality assurance activities from the 
responsible department head and the Medical Staff Executive 
Committee (Section 32155 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
Section 54962 of the Government Code). 

B. Confer with Legal Counsel regarding pending and threatened 
litigation, existing litigation and significant exposure to litigation, 
2 matters pending (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9). 

C. Discuss trade secrets, new programs and services (estimated 
public session date for discussion yet to be determined)(Health 
and Safety Code Section 32106). 

63



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors                    August 16, 2017 
Regular Meeting                 Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
 
RETURN TO OPEN 
SESSION AND REPORT 
OF ACTION TAKEN 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
D. Discussion of a personnel matter (pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957). 
 
At 8:09 pm the meeting returned to open session.  Doctor Ungersma 
reported that the Board took action to settle one pending litigation. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:10pm. 
 
 
  

  
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 
John Ungersma MD, Vice President 

 
 
 
    Attest:   ________________________________________ 
                  M.C. Hubbard, Secretary 

64



1 
 

   
 

2013 CMS Validation Survey Monitoring-August 2017 
 

1. QAPI continues to receive and monitor data related to the previous CMS Validation Survey, including but not limited to, 
restraints, dietary process measures, case management, pain re-assessment, as follows: 
 
a. Advance Directives Monitoring.  

 

         
 

b. Positive Lab Cultures are being routed to Infection Prevention and each positive is being investigated as to source.  
Monitoring has been ongoing and reported through Infection Control Committee.  QAPI receives data.   

 
c. Safe Food cooling monitored for compliance with approved policy and procedure.  100% compliance since May 6, 

2013. 
 
d. Dietary hand washing logs have been reported and are at 100% compliance since May 6, 2013. 

 
 

e. QAPI continues to monitor dietary referrals and the number of consults completed within 24 hours.  
 
 

65



2 
 

 
 

 
 

f. Care plans reviewed by Case Management and interventions made to produce care plans. Progress has been made in  
developing individualized care plans. 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

66



3 
 

 
 

g. Fire drill date, times, attendance and outcomes, smoke detector tests, and fire extinguisher test grids have been 
approved.  All fire drills were complete and compliant from May 6, through present.  

 
 

h. Pain Re-Assessment. NIH conducts pain re-assessment after administering pain medications and uses a 1-10 scale.  
 

 
 
    

 
 
 
   

67



4 
 

 
 
   Note: Due to small sample sizes in the ICU, results should be interpreted with caution for this unit. 
 
 

 
 

*ED July 2017 data not reported 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68



5 
 

 
 
Table 6. Restraint chart monitoring for legal orders. 

 Jan 
2017 

Feb 
2017 

March 
2017 

April 
2017* 

May 
2017 

June 
2017 

July 
2017 

Aug 
2017 

Goal 

Restraint verbal/written 
order obtained within 1 hour 
of restraints 

2/2 
(100% 

1/1 
(100%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

 2/2 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

100% 

Physician signed order 
within 24 hours 

½ 
(50%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 2/2 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

2/3 
(66%) 

100% 

Physician Initial Order 
Completed (all areas 
completed and 
form/time/date noted/signed 
by MD and RN) 

0/2 
(0%) 

1/1 
(100%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 2/2 
(100%) 

1/2 
(50%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

1/3 
(33%) 

100% 

Physician Re-Order 
Completed (all areas 
completed and form 
time/date/noted/signed by 
MD and RN) 

3/9 
(33%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

0/1 
(0%) 

 0/1 
(0%) 

3/3 
(100%) 

2/5 
(40%) 

2/8 
(25%) 

100% 

Orders are for 24 hours 11/11 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

2/2 
(100%) 

 3/3 
(100%) 

5/5 
(100%) 

8/8 
(100%) 

11/11 
(100%) 

100% 

Is this a PRN (as needed) 
Order 

0/11 
(0%) 

0/2 
(0%) 

0/2 
(0%) 

 0/3 
(0%) 

0/5 
(0%) 

0/8 
(0%) 

0/11 
(0%) 

0% 

              *No restraint orders for this time interval 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

69



 
 

Rev. 9/1/17 krb  
 

Hospital-Wide Pillars of Excellence: FY July 1, 2016-June 30, 2017 
                 
   J-S O-D J-M A-J  
Indicator Baseline Goal Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 YTD 
Service 

1. Patient satisfaction        
a. Avatar RHC-                                Overall score 

% Top Box 
75.28 
Below 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

78.10 
Below 

Average 

75.5 
Below 

Average1 

75.0 
Below 

Average1 

68.6 
Below 

Average1 

73.0 
Below 

Average1 

b. Avatar Emergency Department-Overall 
score % Top Box 

78.20 
Above 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

73.28 
Below 

Average 

69.8 
Below 

Average 2 

75.1 
About 

Average2 

72.8 
Below 

Average2  

71.7 
Below 

Average2  

c. HCAHPS Perinatal-                    Overall score 
% Top Box 

72.64 
Below 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

68.65 
Below 

Average 

62.5 
Below 

Average3  
 

78.6 
Best in 
Class3  

75.8 
Above 

Average3 

75.4 
Above 

Average3  

d. HCAHPS MedSurg-                     Overall score 
% Top Box 

75.86 
About 

Average 

85.0 
Better 
Than 
Most 

74.52 
About 

Average 

67.5 
Below 

Average4  

70.4 
About 

Average4  

61.2 
Below 

Average4 

66.4 
Below 

Average4  

Note: Q1 data is bases on three months due to switch from Avatar to Press Ganey. Data for the Perinatal Unit for Q1 and Q2 should be interpreted with caution due to small 
sample size. YTD is based on data from Q2, Q3 and Q4 due to transition to Press Ganey. 1. Peer Comparison = All PG Medical Practice Groups. 2. Peer Comparison= Hospitals 
with 10,000 or less visits/year. 3. Peer Comparison= Hospitals with 20-30 Beds. 4. Peer Comparison= Hospitals with 20-30 Beds. 
Quality 

Adverse Drug Events-Anticoagulants* 2/44 
(4.5%) 0 1/2 

(50%) 
0/4  
(0%) 

0/10 (0%) 0/6 
(0%) 

1/22 
(4.5%) 

1. Surgical Site Infections*,1 5/1104 
(0.45%) 0 2/312 

(0.64%) 
3/348 

(0.86%) 
2/362 
(.20%) 

2/398 
(.5%) 

9/1420 
(0.63%) 

2. Central Line Associated Bloodstream Infections 
(CLABSI) CLABSI/Line Days (Per 1000 Line 
Days)* 

0/155 (0) 
0 

0/79  
(0) 

0/60  
(0) 

0/66   
(0) 

 

0/47 
(0%) 

0/252 
(0) 

3. Catheter Associated Urinary Tract Infections 
(CAUTI) CAUTI/Catheter Days (Per 1000 
Catheter Days)* 

0/579 (0) 
0 

1/180 
(5.55) 

0/189  
(0) 

0/159   (0) 0/183 
(0%) 

1/711 
(.14%) 

4. Ventilator Associated Pneumonia* 0/36 
(0%) 0 0/3 

(0%) 
0/5  
(0%) 

0/9   (0%) 0/5 
(0%) 

0/22 
(0%) 

5. Falls With Injuries (Per 1000 Patient Days)* 3/4394 
(0.68) 0 0/943 (0) 1/707 

(1.41) 
1/804 
(1.24) 

1/802 
(1.24%) 

3/3256 
(0.92%) 

6. 30 Day Readmission Rate (Inpatient)* 64/1181 
(5.4%) <15% 10/3242 

(3.1%) 
7/277 
(2.5%) 

2/281 
(0.7%) 

10/286 
(7%) 

29/1168 
(2.4%) 

*Note: Baseline period for these metrics is FY 15-16.     1. SSI National average is about 2.0%. 2. Correction was made in denominator for this data. 
People        

1. Overall Turnover Rate, 3 89/491 
(18.13%) <15% 21/432 

(4.86%) 
21/441 
(4.76%) 

14/446 
(3.14%) 

18/457 
(3.94%) 

74/513 
(14.42%) 

2. Total Recordable Incident Rate (OSHA) per 100 
employees-Modified**, 3 

37/407 
(9.09) 0 14/414 

(3.38%) 
3/416 

(0.72%) 
24/432 
(5.56%) 

11/439 
(2.51%) 

52/425 
(12.24%) 

3.Benchmark data for these metrics only available per annum and since the number of incidents accumulates, but number of employees is relatively constant, it is most 
appropriate to compare only per annum data to the goal. To compute YTD prior to year end, an average of the quarterly metric denominator will be used. 
**OSHA metric is per 100 FTE; NIH proxy measure is per 100 employees. National average for hospitals is 6.2. (Reference available in PEX office) 
Finance        

1. Current Ratio  2.87 >2.0 2.27 3.16 3.46 3.58 3.12 
2. Days Cash on Hand-Short Term Sources   82 >75 85 72 77 77 78 
3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.43 >1.5-2.0 2.67 2.30 2.16 1.89 2.26 
4. A/R Days (Inpatient & Outpatient) 65 <60 76 76 81 84 79 

 

LEGEND 
 Best-in-Class Performance, Exceeds Goal 
 Above Average, Meets Goal 
 About Average, Does Not Meet Goal 
 Below Average, Does Not Meet Goal 
Important General Notes: 
1. Goals in Blue are stretch goals and may follow a ‘zero defects’ approach outlined in the Hospital-Wide Quality Assurance and Performance 

Improvement (QAPI) plan. On some metrics, we have set the bold goal of zero defects (best-in-class). For the metrics with a goal of zero, either we 
are best-in-class and get a blue color code or not best-in-class and get a red code. It is important to note that a code of red in the ‘Quality’ category 
of indicators for metrics with goals of zero does not necessarily indicate poor performance, just that we have not met our goal of zero. For example, 
on Surgical Site infections for Quarter 1, FY 15-16, we did not meet our goal of zero defects, but are still outperforming most of the country with an 
infection rate of 4 times LOWER than the national average of 2.0%. 

2. Patient Satisfaction/Patient Experience-For each department the Top Box Percentile Rank for the chosen Peer Comparison groups was used to 
classify the performance category based on the following cut points; 90-100 Best in Class (Blue), 75-89 Above Average (Green), 50-74 About Average 
(Yellow), ≤49 Below Average (Red). It is recommended that specific performance dimensions be further assessed by area leadership to identify 
specific opportunities for improvement.  

 

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166




